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Status  of  Cash Flows �
The status of cash flows for the current consolidated fiscal year and the primary reasons are as follows.

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to 195,306 million yen, due to an increase in deposits and other factors.
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to 222,741 million yen, due to payments for purchase of securities and other factors.
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to 11,805 million yen, due to payments for purchase of treasury stock, cash divi-

dends paid, and other factors.
As a result of the above, the balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the current consolidated fiscal year is 1,169,723 mil-

lion yen.

Analysis  of  Financial  Posit ion and Operating Results  �
Regarding the financial position at the end of the current consolidated fiscal year, total assets increased 635,207 million yen from the end 
of the previous consolidated fiscal year to 11,079,796 million yen, and total equity decreased 32,563 million yen from the end of the pre-
vious consolidated fiscal year to 619,754 million yen.

Regarding the balances of primary accounting items, the balance of deposits increased 198,764 million yen from the end of the pre-
vious consolidated fiscal year to 8,766,321 million yen.

The balance of loans and bills discounted increased 3 3 3,7 6 3 million yen from the end of the previous consolidated fiscal year to 
7,186,901 million yen.

The balance of securities increased 204,086 million yen from the end of the previous consolidated fiscal year to 2,216,941 million yen.

Regarding operating results for the current consolidated fiscal year, ordinary income increased 1,817 million yen from the previous con-
solidated fiscal year to 172,140 million yen due to an increase in other operating income and other factors resulting from an in- crease in 
gains on sales of securities including Japanese government bonds and acquisition of a subsidiary. 

On the other hand, ordinary expenses increased 8,502 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 145,106 million yen 
due to increase in other expenses and other factors resulting from an increase in loss on impairment of securities and other factors. 

As a result, ordinary profit decreased 6,684 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 27,033 million yen. Meanwhile, 
net income attributable to owners of parent decreased 3,941 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 18,261 million yen.

Results by business segments are as follows.
a. �Banking business�  

Ordinary income decreased 1,835 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 139,042 million yen, and segment profit de-
creased 812 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 34,775 million yen.

b. �Leasing business�  
Ordinary income increased 2,423 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 32,934 million yen, and segment profit de-
creased 246 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 1,349 million yen.

c. �Others�  
Ordinary income increased 76 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 9,360 million yen, and segment profit decreased 
35 million yen from the previous consolidated fiscal year to 1,090 million yen.

Review of Financial Results
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)
2020 2019 2020

ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks (Notes 3 and 14) ¥� 1,173,509 ¥� 1,211,471 $� 10,782,955
Call loans and bills bought (Note 14) 388 314 3,565
Monetary claims purchased 14,542 10,557 133,621
Trading assets (Notes 4 and 14) 876 1,183 8,049
Money held in trust (Note 5) 18,746 18,621 172,250
Securities (Notes 4, 8, and 14) 2,216,941 2,012,855 20,370,679
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 6, 9, and 14) 7,186,901 6,853,138 66,037,866
Foreign exchange assets 13,273 12,419 121,960
Lease receivables and investment assets (Note 8) 67,150 52,606 617,017
Other assets (Note 8) 285,610 191,314 2,624,368
Fixed assets (Note 7) 108,885 98,306 1,000,505
Intangible assets (Note 7) 11,011 9,317 101,176
Asset for retirement benefits (Note 10) 4,681 5,857 43,012
Deferred tax assets (Note 13) 9,301 972 85,463
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 35,927 33,893 330,120
Reserve for possible loan losses (Note 14) (67,950) (68,241) (624,368)

Total assets ¥� 11,079,796 ¥� 10,444,589 $� 101,808,288

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Deposits (Notes 8 and 14) ¥� 8,766,321 ¥� 8,567,557 $� 80,550,592
Call money and bills sold (Notes 8 and 14)       12,733        116,998
Payables under repurchase agreements (Notes 8 and 14) 232,754 207,630 2,138,693
Borrowing under securities lending transactions (Notes 8 and 14) 647,317 479,347 5,947,964
Trading liabilities 11 101
Borrowed money (Notes 8 and 14) 594,946 402,402 5,466,746
Foreign exchange liabilities 82 172 753
Borrowed money from trust account 2,586 23,761
Other liabilities 158,278 81,540 1,454,360
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 10) 2,437 2,785 22,392
Reserve for repayments for dormant deposits 2,101 2,267 19,305
Reserve for contingent losses 473 484 4,346
Reserve under special laws 0 0 0
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 13) 37 10,114 339
Deferred tax liabilities related to land revaluation (Note 2(g)) 4,028 4,076 37,011
Acceptances and guarantees 35,927 33,893 330,120

Total liabilities 10,460,041 9,792,272   96,113,580

Equity (Note 11):
Common stock

authorized, 1,000,000,000 shares;
issued, 463,375,978 shares in 2020 and 2019 36,000 36,000 330,791 

Capital surplus 199,636 198,362 1,834,383 
Retained earnings 379,006 366,087 3,482,550 
Treasury stock, at cost, 23,464,212 shares in 2020 and 11,862,526 shares in 2019 (10,771) (5,270) (98,970)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities (Note 4) 74,783 58,987 687,154 
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting (61,458) (7,915) (564,715)
Excess of land revaluation (Note 2(g)) 5,779 5,855 53,101 
Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 10) (5,024) (3,575) (46,163)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 14,080 53,350 129,376 
Noncontrolling interests 1,803 3,788 16,567

Total equity 619,754 652,317 5,694,698
Total liabilities and equity ¥� 11,079,796 ¥� 10,444,589 $� 101,808,288

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet	
March 31, 2020 

THE KAGOSHIMA BANK, LTD.
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet	
March 31, 2020 and 2019
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)
2020 2019 2020

Income:
Interest income:

Interest on loans and discounts ¥� 71,302 ¥� 70,254 $� 655,168 
Interest and dividends on securities 26,941 27,446 247,551
Other interest income 409 418 3,758

Trust fees 41 376
Fees and commissions income 21,284 21,661 195,571
Trading income 474 827 4,355
Other operating income 45,947 41,002 422,190
Other income (Note 12) 6,135 8,825 56,372

Total income 172,538 170,437 1,585,390

Expenses:
Interest expenses:

Interest on deposits 787 904 7,231
Other interest expenses 11,042 6,856 101,460

Fees and commissions expenses 8,612 8,132 79,132
Other operating expenses 34,227 36,658 314,499
General and administrative expenses 76,686 75,645 704,640
Provision for possible loan losses 1,208 3,809 11,099
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets 118 92 1,084
Other expenses 13,038 4,971 119,801

Total expenses 145,726 137,070 1,339,024
Income before income taxes 26,810 33,366 246,347 
Income taxes (Note 13):

Current 10,177 12,185 93,512 
Deferred (1,755) (1,484) (16,126)
Total income taxes 8,421 10,701 77,377

Net income 18,389 22,665 168,969
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 127 462 1,166
Net income attributable to owners of the parent ¥� 18,261 ¥� 22,202 $� 167,793

Per share of common stock (Note 2 (o)): Yen U.S. dollars
Basic net income ¥� 40.70 ¥� 49.12 $� 0.37
Cash dividends applicable to the year 12.00 12.00 0.11

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income
Year ended March 31, 2020
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Consolidated Financial Statements
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)
2020 2019 2020

Net income ¥� 18,389 ¥� 22,665 $� 168,969
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 16):

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 15,796 10,708 145,143
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting (53,542) (6,039)   (491,978) 
Defined retirement benefit plans (1,449) (321) (13,314)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) (39,194) 4,347 (360,139)
Comprehensive income (loss) ¥� (20,805) ¥� 27,012 $� (191,169)

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent ¥� (20,933) ¥� 26,574 $� (192,345)
Noncontrolling interests 127 438 1,166

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended March 31, 2020
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Thousands Millions of yen
Outstanding 

number of 
shares of 

common stock
Common

stock
Capital
surplus

Retained
earnings

Treasury
stock

Balance at April 1, 2018 463,375 ¥� 36,000 ¥�194,112 ¥�349,103 ¥� (3,601)
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 4,249
Cash dividends, ¥12.00 per share (5,436)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 22,202
Purchase of treasury stock (1,668)
Disposal of treasury stock (0) 0
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 217
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2019 463,375 36,000 198,362 366,087 (5,270)
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 1,273
Cash dividends, ¥12.00 per 

share (5,418)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 18,261
Purchase of treasury stock (5,500)
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 75
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 463,375 ¥� 36,000 ¥�199,636 ¥�379,006 ¥�(10,771)

Millions of yen
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains 
(losses) on 

available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Defined 
retirement 

benefit plans

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income
Noncontrolling 

interests
Total

equity

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥� 48,255 ¥� (1,876) ¥� 6,072 ¥� (3,254) ¥� 49,196 ¥� 8,737 ¥�633,548
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 4,249
Cash dividends, ¥12.00 per share (5,436)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 22,202
Purchase of treasury stock (1,668)
Disposal of treasury stock 0
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 217
Net change in the year 10,731 (6,039) (217) (321) 4,154 (4,949) (795)

Balance at March 31, 2019 58,987 (7,915) 5,855 (3,575) 53,350 3,788 652,317
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 1,273
Cash dividends, ¥12.00 per 

share (5,418)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 18,261
Purchase of treasury stock (5,500)
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 75
Net change in the year 15,796 (53,542) (75) (1,449) (39,269) (1,985) (41,254)

Balance at March 31, 2020 ¥� 74,783 ¥� (61,458) ¥� 5,779 ¥� (5,024) ¥� 14,080 ¥� 1,803 ¥�619,754

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended March 31, 2020
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Consolidated Financial Statements
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Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Common

stock
Capital
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Treasury
stock

Balance at March 31, 2019 $� 330,791 $�1,822,677 $�3,363,842 $� (48,424)
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 11,697
Cash dividends, $0.11 per 

share (49,784)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 167,793 
Purchase of treasury stock (50,537)
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 689
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 330,791 $�1,834,383 $�3,482,550 $� (98,970)

Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains 
(losses) on  

available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Defined 
retirement 

benefit plans

Total 
accumulated 

other 
comprehensive 

income
Noncontrolling 

interests
Total

equity

Balance at March 31, 2019 $� 542,010 $� (72,728) $� 53,799 $� (32,849) $� 490,214 $� 34,806 $�5,993,907
Purchase of shares of 

consolidated subsidiaries 11,697
Cash dividends, $0.11 per 

share (49,784)
Net income attributable to 

owners of the parent 167,793
Purchase of treasury stock (50,537)
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 689
Net change in the year 145,143 (491,978) (689) (13,314) (360,828) (18,239) (379,068)

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 687,154 $� (564,715) $� 53,101 $� (46,163) $� 129,376 $� 16,567 $�5,694,698 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended March 31, 2020
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars (Note 1)
2020 2019 2020

Operating activities:
Income before income taxes ¥� 26,810 ¥� 33,366 $� 246,347
Adjustments for:

Income taxes paid (12,604) (10,040) (115,813)
Depreciation and amortization 7,421 7,212 68,188 
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets 118 92 1,084 
Amortization of goodwill 935 8,591
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible loan losses (374) 2,151 (3,436) 
(Increase) decrease in asset for retirement benefits 1,176 294 10,805 
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits (406) (25) (3,730)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for repayments for dormant deposits (165) 51 (1,516)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for contingent losses (10) (4) (91)
Interest and dividend income (98,654) (98,120) (906,496)
Interest expenses 11,834 7,760 108,738 
(Gains) losses on securities 93 (4,300) 854
(Gains) losses on money held in trust 125 164 1,148 
(Gains) losses on foreign exchanges (434) 701 (3,987)
(Gains) losses on disposal of fixed assets 103 259 946
Net (increase) decrease in trading assets 306 2,243 2,811 
Net (increase) decrease in loans and bills discounted (333,762) (406,939) (3,066,819)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits 198,765 (5,437) 1,826,380
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (excluding subordinated borrowings) 175,897 103,242 1,616,254 
Net (increase) decrease in due from banks (excluding deposits paid to the Bank of Japan) (24) 183 (220)
Net (increase) decrease in call loans and others 477 40,816 4,382
Net increase (decrease) in call money and others 12,733 116,998
Net increase (decrease) in payables under repurchase agreements 25,124 46,172 230,855 
Net increase (decrease) in borrowing under securities lending transactions 167,970 173,384 1,543,416 
Net (increase) decrease in foreign exchange assets (853) 1,967 (7,837)
Net increase (decrease) in foreign exchange liabilities (90) 49 (826)
Net (increase) decrease in lease receivables and investment assets (4,405) (1,268) (40,475)
Net (increase) decrease in collateral offered for financial instruments, etc. (79,779) (5,033) (733,060)
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money from trust accounts 2,586 23,761
Interest received 101,516 100,368 932,794 
Interest paid (10,648) (7,718) (97,840)
Other 3,521 (14,004) 32,353

Total adjustments 168,496 (65,774) 1,548,249
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 195,306 (32,408) 1,794,597

Investing activities:
Payments for purchase of securities (1,676,373) (1,744,197) (15,403,592)
Proceeds from sales of securities 278,355 482,494 2,557,704
Proceeds from redemption of securities 1,196,256 1,600,974 10,991,969
Increase in money held in trust (8,450) (14,239) (77,644)
Decrease in money held in trust 8,102 13,303 74,446 
Payments for purchase of fixed assets (14,592) (10,196) (134,080)
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 524 566 4,814
Payments for purchase of intangible assets (5,163) (2,814) (47,440)
Payments for purchases of shares of subsidiaries that result in 

change in scope of consolidation (1,400) (12,864)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (222,741) 325,890 (2,046,687) 

Financing activities:
Cash dividends paid (5,418) (5,436) (49,784)
Cash dividends paid to noncontrolling interests (0) (4) (0)
Payments for purchases of treasury stock (5,500) (1,668) (50,537)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 0  
Payments for purchases of shares of subsidiaries that do not result in 

change in scope of consolidation (886) (1,134) (8,141)
Net cash used in financing activities (11,805) (8,243) (108,471)
Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents 8 10 73
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (39,231) 285,249 (360,479)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,208,955 923,705 11,108,655
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 3) ¥� 1,169,723 ¥� 1,208,955 $� 10,748,166

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended March 31, 2020

Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. 	Basis  of  Presenting Consolidated Financial  Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsid-

iaries (collectively, the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments 

and Exchange Act, its related accounting regulations and the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the “Banking 

Law”), and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to applica-

tion and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Amounts of less than ¥1 million and $1 thousand have been omitted. As a result, the totals shown in the consolidated financial 

statements and notes thereto do not necessarily agree with the sum of the individual account balances.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which the Company is incor-

porated and operates. The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of 

readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥108.83 to $1.00, the approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2020. Such 

translations should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or 

any other rate.

2 . 	Summar y of  Signif icant  Accounting Policies

a. Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its 18 and 17 consolidated subsidiar-

ies as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. 

On October 2, 2019, the Higo Bank, Ltd., a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, acquired 90% of the shares issued by JR Kyushu 

Financial Management Company, which was later renamed as JR Kyushu FG Lease, Inc. Accordingly, JR Kyushu FG Lease, Inc. has been 

consolidated from the year ended March 31, 2020.

Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control 

over operations are fully consolidated.

Investments in remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies are stated at cost. If the equity method of account-

ing had been applied to the investment in these companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements would 

not be material.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit includ-

ed in assets resulting from transactions within the Group is eliminated.

b. Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method. Acquisition-related costs, such as advisory fees or professional 

fees, are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred. If the initial accounting for a business combination is 

incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the business combination occurs, an acquirer shall report in its financial state-

ments provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall not 

exceed one year from the acquisition, the acquirer shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition 

date to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and that would have af-

fected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if the accounting for the 

business combination had been completed at the acquisition date. The acquirer recognizes any bargain purchase gain in profit or loss 

immediately on the acquisition date after reassessing and confirming that all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed 

have been identified after a review of the procedures used in the purchase price allocation. A parent’s ownership interest in a subsid-

iary might change if the parent purchases or sells ownership interests in its subsidiary. The carrying amount of noncontrolling interests 

is adjusted to reflect the change in the parent’s ownership interest in its subsidiary while the parent retains its controlling interest in its 

subsidiary. Any difference between the fair value of the consideration received or paid and the amount by which the noncontrolling 

interests are adjusted is accounted for as capital surplus as long as the parent retains control over its subsidiary.

8

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Kyushu Financial Group, Inc. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year ended March 31, 2020

011_0293401372009.indd   8 2020/09/30   13:54:43



c. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows are composed of cash on hand and due from the Bank of 

Japan.

d. Foreign currency translation
The Group maintains its accounting records in Japanese yen. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into Japanese yen at 

the exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated balance sheet date.

e. Trading assets/liabilities and trading income/expenses
Trading transactions of consolidated subsidiaries, which are engaged in banking business and financial instruments business intended 

to take advantage of short-term fluctuations and arbitrage opportunities in interest rates, currency exchange rates, market prices of se-

curities, and related indices, are recognized on a trade-date basis and recorded in trading assets or trading liabilities in the consolidated 

balance sheet. Income or expenses generated on the relevant trading transactions are recorded in trading income or trading expenses 

in the consolidated statement of income.

Securities and other monetary claims held for trading purposes are stated at fair value at the consolidated balance sheet date. 

Derivative financial products, such as swaps, forward contracts, and option transactions, are stated at fair value, assuming that such 

transactions were terminated and settled at the consolidated balance sheet date.

Trading income and trading expenses include the interest received and interest paid during the fiscal year; the gains or losses 

resulting from any change in the value of securities and other monetary claims between the beginning and the end of the fiscal year 

and the gains or losses resulting from any change in the value of financial derivatives between the beginning and the end of the fiscal 

year, assuming they were settled at the end of the fiscal year.

f. Financial instruments
i) Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost as determined using the moving-average method. Available-for-sale se-

curities, with market quotations, are stated at the market prices prevailing on the consolidated balance sheet date. Cost of sales of such 

securities is determined using the moving-average method. Net unrealized gains or losses on these securities, net of taxes, are report-

ed in a separate component of equity. Available-for-sale securities, the market quotations of which are extremely difficult to obtain, are 

stated at cost as determined using the moving-average method. For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, securities are reduced 

to net realizable value by a charge to income. Securities included in money held in trusts managed separately, the primary objective of 

which is to invest, are stated at market prices. In addition, investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies that are 

not accounted for by the equity method are stated at cost as determined using the moving-average method.

ii) Derivatives 

Derivatives other than those designated as “Trading assets and trading liabilities” (see (e) Trading assets/liabilities and trading income/

expenses) are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value included in net profit or loss for the period in which they arise, except for 

derivatives that are designated as “hedging instruments” (see iii) Hedge accounting below).

iii) Hedge accounting

a) Hedge of interest rate risks

The banking consolidated subsidiaries apply deferral hedge accounting to hedges of interest rate risk associated with financial assets 

and liabilities in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, “Accounting and Auditing Treatments on the Application 

of Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry,” issued on February 13, 2002, by the Japanese Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants (JICPA). Under this rule, the effectiveness of cash flow hedges and hedges for the purpose of reducing 

interest rate fluctuation risk of loans and debt securities is assessed based on the correlation between a base interest rate index of the 

hedged items and that of the hedging instruments. Specific matching criteria are not measured at fair value, but the net payments or 

receipts under the swap agreements are recognized and included in interest expenses or income.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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b) Hedge of foreign currency exchange risks

The banking consolidated subsidiaries apply the deferral method of hedge accounting for hedges of the risks arising from financial 

assets and liabilities due to the fluctuation of foreign exchange rates, which is described in “Treatment for Accounting and Auditing of 

Application of Accounting Standard for Foreign Currency Transactions in Banking Industry,” issued on July 29, 2002 (the JICPA Industry 

Audit Committee Report No. 25). The banking consolidated subsidiaries assess the effectiveness of hedging instruments executed for 

reducing the risk of changes in currency exchange rates with currency swaps or foreign exchange swaps by verifying that there ex-

ist foreign currency positions of the hedging instruments corresponding to the foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities to be 

hedged.

g. Fixed assets and intangible assets
i) Fixed assets and intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation

Depreciation of fixed assets owned by the Company and the banking consolidated subsidiaries is computed using the declining-

balance method, while the straight-line method is applied to buildings (excluding facilities attached to buildings) acquired on or after 

April 1, 1998, and facilities attached to buildings and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016. The range of useful lives is principally 

from 19 to 50 years for buildings and from 2 to 20 years for other fixed assets. Tangible fixed assets of other consolidated subsidiaries 

are principally depreciated using the declining-balance method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Amortization of intangible assets owned by the Group is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 

of the assets. Cost of computer software obtained for internal use is amortized over the estimated useful lives of five years.

ii) Land revaluation

Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” the Group elected a one-time revaluation of land for use by Higo Bank to a value based on real 

estate appraisal information as of March 31, 1999.

The resulting excess of land revaluation represents unrealized appreciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a compo-

nent of equity. There was no effect on the consolidated statement of income. Continuous readjustment is not permitted, unless the 

land value subsequently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should be removed from the excess of land 

revaluation account and related deferred tax liabilities.

The carrying amount of the land after the above one-time revaluation exceeded the fair value by ¥9,459 million ($86,915 thousand) 

and ¥9,610 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

h. Long-lived assets
The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the carrying amount of 

an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or asset 

group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of 

the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds 

its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset 

or the net selling price at disposition.

i. Reserve for possible loan losses
Reserve for possible loan losses of the banking consolidated subsidiaries is provided to cover future credit losses in accordance with 

the internal rules for self-assessment of asset quality.

Reserve for possible loan losses is provided based on historical loan-loss ratio computed for a certain period in the past for claims 

to normal borrowers and claims to borrowers who need attention as stipulated by the “Practical Guidelines for Audits of the Self-

Assessment of Assets of Financial Institutions Including Banks, Write-Down and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts,” issued on March 17, 

2020 (the JICPA Ad Hoc Committee for Audit of Banks, etc., Report No. 4).

For claims to large-lot borrowers who need attention, whose loans are classified as restructured loans, and whose future cash flows 

of principal and interest are reasonably estimated, the reserve is provided for as the difference between the present value of expected 

future cash flows discounted at the contracted interest rate and the carrying amount of the claims. In cases where it is difficult to rea-

sonably estimate future cash flows, the reserve is provided based on the estimated credit losses within the remaining loan terms calcu-

lated by the banks. 
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For claims to borrowers who are possibly bankrupt, the reserve is provided for loan losses at the amount considered necessary 

based on overall solvency assessment of the borrowers after deducting the amount expected to be collected through the disposal of 

collateral or execution of guarantees. 

For claims to borrowers who are legally bankrupt and virtually bankrupt, the reserve is provided based on the net of amounts ex-

ceeding the expected collectible amounts through the disposal of collateral or execution of guarantees. 

All claims are assessed by the operating divisions of the banking consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the internal rules for 

the self-assessment of asset quality. The asset examination division, which is independent from the operating divisions, conducts au-

dits of these assessments.

Regarding other consolidated subsidiaries, a general reserve for loan losses is provided in the amount deemed necessary based on 

historical loan-loss ratio, and the reserve for specific claims is provided in the amount deemed uncollectible based on the respective 

assessment.

(Additional information)

The Group assumes that the spread of the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) and its effects on the economic activities will continue 

for approximately one year. Accordingly, it is presumed that there will be certain impacts on credit risk associated with the Group’s 

loans, etc. Under these circumstances, the Group records reserves for possible loan losses, reflecting available information that may 

impact estimates related to borrowers.

However, such assumptions are uncertain, and the amount of losses may change depending on changes in the spread of 

COVID-19 and its impact on economic activities in the future.

j. Retirement and pension plans
The banking consolidated subsidiaries have cash balance-type pension plans, defined benefit corporate pension plans (fund type), and 

lump-sum retirement benefit plans, which became fund type plans after the establishment of the retirement benefit trust. The amount 

of liability for employees’ retirement benefit is determined based on the projected benefit obligations and the pension assets on the 

consolidated balance sheet date. The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit formula basis.

Past service cost is amortized using the straight-line method over 10 years. Net actuarial gain or loss is amortized using the straight-

line method or declining-balance method over 10 years commencing from the next fiscal year of occurrence. 

Other consolidated subsidiaries adopt the simplified method in determining liabilities for retirement benefits and net periodic 

benefit costs under which liability for retirement benefits is computed based on projected benefit obligations.

k. Reserve for contingent losses

Under the joint responsibility system with governmental credit guarantee organizations, reserve for contingent losses is provided for 

possible future payments to the organizations in an amount deemed necessary based on estimated losses in the future.

l. Reserve for repayments for dormant deposits
Reserve for repayments for dormant deposits is provided for possible losses on future withdrawal of inactive deposits that had been 

recognized as income.

m. Reserve under special laws
Reserve under special laws is a reserve for liability for financial instruments transactions of consolidated subsidiary and is recorded as 

determined in accordance with the provisions of Article 46-5 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and Article 175 of the 

Cabinet Office Ordinance on Financial Instruments Business in order to provide for losses arising from security-related accidents. 

n. Leases
Revenues and cost of revenues of finance lease transactions are recognized and included in other operating income and other operat-

ing expenses when lease payments are made.

11
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o. Per share information
The computation of basic net income per share is based on the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding 

during the year. The weighted-average number of common shares used in the computation was 448,630 thousand shares and 451,921 

thousand shares for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, because there are no potentially dilu-

tive common shares.

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statement of income are dividends applicable to the re-

spective years, including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

p. Income taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statement of income. The asset 

and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary dif-

ferences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently 

enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

q. Appropriations of retained earnings
Appropriations of retained earnings at each year-end are reflected in the consolidated financial statements for the following year upon 

shareholders’ approval.

r. New accounting pronouncements
1. Accounting Standards for Fair Value Measurement, etc.

Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement (ASBJ Statement No. 30, July 4, 2019)

Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement (ASBJ Guidance No. 31, July 4, 2019)

Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments (ASBJ Statement No. 10, July 4, 2019)

Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments (ASBJ Guidance No. 19, March 31, 2020)

(1)	 Overview

In order to enhance comparability with international accounting standards, “Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and 

“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Fair Value 

Measurement Accounting Standards, etc.”) have been developed and guidance on the method of fair value measurement has been 

provided. Fair Value Measurement Accounting Standards, etc. will be applied to the fair value of the following items:

•Financial instruments defined in “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments”

In addition, “Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments” was revised and notes on items includ-

ing breakdowns by level of the fair value of financial instruments have been provided. 

(2)	 Date of adoption

The accounting standards are effective for the annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021.

(3)	 The effect of adopting the accounting standards

The effect of adopting the Standards and Implementation Guidance is under evaluation.

2. Accounting Standard for Disclosure of Accounting Estimates (ASBJ No. 31, March 31, 2020)

(1)	 Overview

The Standard aims to disclose information that will help users of the financial statements understand the details of accounting es-

timates on the items which may potentially have significant impacts on the financial statements for the following fiscal year from 

among the amounts recorded in the financial statements for the current fiscal year that are based on accounting estimates.

(2)	 Date of adoption

The Standard is scheduled to be applied from the end of the fiscal year ending on and after March 31, 2021.

12
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s. Changes in presentation
“Net (increase) decrease in collateral offered for financial instruments, etc.,” which was included in “Other” under “Operating activities” 

for the year ended March 31, 2019, has been separately presented from the year ended March 31, 2020 due to the significant increase 

from the prior year. In order to reflect this change in presentation, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 

2019 was reclassified.

As a result, ¥(19,037) million of “Other” under “Operating activities” in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 

March 31, 2019 has been reclassified into ¥(5,033) million of “Net (increase) decrease in collateral offered for financial instruments, etc.” 

and ¥(14,004) million of “Other.”

3. 	Cash and Cash Equivalents

A reconciliation of the cash and cash equivalent balances in the consolidated statement of cash flows and the account balances in the 

consolidated balance sheet was as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Cash and due from banks ¥� 1,173,509 ¥� 1,211,471 $�10,782,955
Other due from banks (3,786) (2,515) (34,788)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥� 1,169,723 ¥� 1,208,955 $�10,748,166

4. 	Securities

The costs and aggregate fair values of securities at March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as shown in the table below. The amounts shown in 

the following tables include trading securities classified as “trading assets” in addition to “securities” stated in the consolidated balance 

sheet.

Millions of yen
2020

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 

value
Securities classified as:

Trading ¥� 876
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥� 112,272 ¥� 25,917 ¥� 12,397 125,791
Debt securities 1,176,781 19,409 3,505 1,192,684
Other 782,425 92,752 15,819 859,358

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 18,760 135 21 18,874

Millions of yen
2019

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 

value
Securities classified as:

Trading ¥� 1,183
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥� 107,436 ¥� 37,204 ¥� 8,247 136,393
Debt securities 1,222,564 23,953 410 1,246,106
Other 569,954 33,025 2,285 600,695

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 14,716 125 10 14,830
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Cost
Unrealized

Gains
Unrealized

Losses
Fair 

value
Securities classified as:

Trading $� 8,049
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities $� 1,031,627 $� 238,142 $� 113,911 1,155,848
Debt securities 10,813,020 178,342 32,206 10,959,147
Other 7,189,423 852,265 145,355 7,896,333

Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities 172,378 1,240 192 173,426

Securities included equity investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies that amounted to ¥4,387 million ($40,310 

thousand) and ¥3,641 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Securities lending based on noncollateralized special contracts were included in debt securities and amounted to ¥72,893 million ($669,787 

thousand) and ¥65,289 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Guarantee obligations for private placement bonds, out of bonds included in securities, amounted to ¥27,508 million ($252,761 thousand) 

and ¥20,825 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Unlisted equity securities and other securities without readily available fair values, amounting to ¥20,344 million ($186,933 thousand) and 

¥14,941 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, were not included in the table above.

The information of held-to-maturity securities that were sold for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Millions of yen
2020

Cost of sales Proceeds
Realized gains 

(losses)
Held-to-maturity securities:

Japanese government bonds
Municipal government bonds
Corporate bonds ¥� 27 ¥� 27 ¥� 0
Other

Total ¥� 27 ¥� 27 ¥� 0

Millions of yen
2019

Cost of sales Proceeds
Realized gains 

(losses)
Held-to-maturity securities:

Japanese government bonds
Municipal government bonds
Corporate bonds ¥� 150 ¥� 151 ¥� 1
Other

Total ¥� 150 ¥� 151 ¥� 1

Thousands of U.S. dollars 
2020

Cost of sales Proceeds
Realized gains 

(losses)
Held-to-maturity securities:

Japanese government bonds
Municipal government bonds
Corporate bonds $� 248 $� 248 $� 0
Other

Total $� 248 $� 248 $� 0

Note: (Reason for sales) Due to retirement of bonds through purchase
14
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The information of available-for-sale securities that were sold for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Millions of yen
2020

Proceeds Realized gains Realized losses
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥� 21,759 ¥� 3,558 ¥� 1,640
Debt securities 53,096 787
Other 193,645 9,780 4,713

Total ¥� 268,501 ¥� 14,126 ¥� 6,353

Millions of yen
2019

Proceeds Realized gains Realized losses
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥� 36,635 ¥� 5,874 ¥� 1,185
Debt securities 143,796 5,330 2,780
Other 255,477 3,393 5,588

Total ¥� 435,909 ¥� 14,598 ¥� 9,554

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Proceeds Realized gains Realized losses
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities $� 199,935 $� 32,693 $� 15,069
Debt securities 487,880 7,231 
Other 1,779,334 89,864 43,306 

Total $� 2,467,159 $� 129,798 $� 58,375

Securities other than trading securities (excluding those securities whose fair value cannot be reliably determined) whose fair value sig-

nificantly declined compared with the acquisition cost and was considered not to recover to the acquisition cost were written down to 

the respective fair value, which was recorded as the carrying amount in the consolidated balance sheet.

Impairment loss on equity securities for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was ¥7,842 million ($72,057 thousand) and ¥747 

million, respectively.

Impairment loss was recorded for all securities whose fair value declined by 50% or more of the acquisition cost. For securities 

whose fair value declined by more than 30%, but less than 50%, the necessity of recording impairment loss was determined based on 

the transition of fair values over a certain period in the past and the credit risk of the issuing company.

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Valuation differences:

Available-for-sale securities ¥� 106,367 ¥� 83,242 $� 977,368
Deferred tax liabilities (31,553) (24,071) (289,929)
Noncontrolling interests (30) (183) (275)

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities ¥� 74,783 ¥� 58,987 $� 687,154
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5. 	Money Held in  Trust

The carrying amounts and unrealized gains (losses) of money held in trust as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Money held in trust held for trading

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Carrying amounts ¥� 16,616 ¥� 15,851 $� 152,678
Unrealized gains (losses) credited to income (164) (6) (1,506)

Money held in trust other than those held for trading purposes or held to maturity as of March 31, 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Millions of yen
2020

Carrying amount Cost
Net unrealized
gains (losses)

Other money held in trust ¥� 2,130 ¥� 2,130

Millions of yen
2019

Carrying amount Cost
Net unrealized
gains (losses)

Other money held in trust ¥� 2,770 ¥� 2,770

Thousands of U.S. dollars 
2020

Carrying amount Cost
Net unrealized
gains (losses)

Other money held in trust $� 19,571 $� 19,571

Note: �Net unrealized gains (losses) were nil because the carrying amounts of other money held in trust did not exceed the cost, nor 
the cost exceeded the carrying amounts.

6. 	Loans and Bil ls  Discounted

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, included the following:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Bankruptcy loans ¥� 7,645 ¥� 3,098 $� 70,247
Past-due loans 74,070 81,465 680,602 
Loans past due for three months or more 180 179 1,653 
Restructured loans 50,977 46,756 468,409
Total ¥� 132,874 ¥� 131,500 $� 1,220,931

Bankruptcy loans represent nonaccrual loans to borrowers who are legally bankrupt as defined in Article 96-1-3 and 4 of the Japanese 

Tax Law Enforcement Regulation (Article 97 of 1965 Cabinet Order).

Past-due loans represent nonaccrual loans other than bankruptcy loans and loans for which payments of interest are deferred in 

order to assist or facilitate the restructuring of borrowers in financial difficulties.

Loans past due for three months or more include loans for which payments of principal or interest are delinquent by three months 

or more, as calculated from the day following the contracted payment date, but do not include bankruptcy loans or past-due loans.

Restructured loans represent loans on which contracts were amended in favor of borrowers (e.g., reduction of, or exemption from, 

stated interest, deferral of interest payments, extension of maturity dates, and renunciation of claims) in order to assist or facilitate the 

restructuring of borrowers in financial difficulties, but do not include bankruptcy loans, past-due loans, or loans past due for three 

months. 16

011_0293401372009.indd   16 2020/09/30   13:54:43



Loans include discounted bills amounting to ¥18,089 million ($166,213 thousand) and ¥21,877 million as of March 31, 2020 and 

2019, respectively. The Group is entitled, without limitation, to sell or pledge these discounted bills.

The carrying amounts of loan participations, which were accounted for as loans to original debtors in accordance with “Accounting 

and Presentation of Loan Participation” issued on November 28, 2014 (the JICPA Accounting System Committee Report No. 3), were 

¥3,449 million ($31,691 thousand) and ¥2,985 million as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

7. 	 Fixed A ssets  and Intangible  A ssets

Fixed assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Buildings ¥� 34,365 ¥� 27,728 $� 315,767
Land 50,185 50,494 461,132 
Construction in progress 12,925 9,268 118,763 
Other 11,409 10,815 104,833
Total ¥� 108,885 ¥� 98,306 $� 1,000,505

Accumulated depreciation as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, amounted to ¥73,453 million ($674,933 thousand) and ¥72,947 million, 

respectively.

Deferred gains for tax purposes as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, amounted to ¥3,771 million ($34,650 thousand) and ¥3,517 million, 

respectively.

Intangible assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Software ¥� 10,754 ¥� 9,002 $� 98,814
Other 256 315 2,352
Total ¥� 11,011 ¥� 9,317 $� 101,176

8. 	A ssets  Pledged

Assets pledged as collateral as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Securities ¥� 1,367,469 ¥� 1,226,049 $�12,565,184
Lease receivables and investment assets 1,449 1,815 13,314
Total ¥� 1,368,919 ¥� 1,227,864 $�12,578,507

Liabilities related to the above assets pledged as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Deposits ¥� 76,741 ¥� 46,433 $� 705,145
Call money and bills sold 9,250 84,994
Payables under repurchase agreements 232,754 207,630 2,138,693 
Borrowing under securities-lending transactions 647,317 479,347 5,947,964 
Borrowed money 578,696 387,693 5,317,430 
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In addition, the following assets are deposited as collateral for foreign exchange settlements, transactions with designated financial 

institutions, etc.

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Other assets ¥� 115,697 ¥� 115,696 $� 1,063,098
of which:
Guarantee deposits 779 715 7,157 
Cash collateral for financial instruments 89,458 9,679 821,997 
Deposits to a central counterparty 21,287 12,635 195,598 

9. 	Commitment Line Agreements  Related to Overdraf ts  and Loans

Commitment line agreements relating to overdrafts and loans represent agreements to allow customers to extend overdrafts or loans 

up to agreed amounts at the customer’s request as long as no violation against the conditions of the agreements exists.

Unused commitment lines under such agreements as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unused commitment lines ¥� 1,549,414 ¥� 1,523,061 $�14,237,011
of which:
Those with original maturity periods of one year or less or  

cancellable unconditionally at any time	 ¥� 1,506,311 ¥� 1,480,118 $�13,840,953

The amount of unexercised commitment lines does not necessarily affect the future cash flows of the Group because most of such 

agreements are terminated without being exercised. Most of these agreements have provisions, which stipulate that the Group may 

deny extending loans or decrease the commitment line when there are certain changes in financial markets, certain issues in securing 

loans, and other reasons. The consolidated subsidiaries request collateral in the form of premises or securities as deemed necessary 

upon providing such commitments. In addition, the Group monitors the financial conditions of customers in accordance with its inter-

nal rules on a regular basis and takes necessary measures, including revisiting the terms of commitments and other means to prevent 

credit losses.

10.  Retirement and Pension Plans

The banking consolidated subsidiaries have cash balance-type pension plans, defined benefit corporate pension plans (fund type), and 

lump-sum retirement benefit plans, which became fund type plans after the establishment of the retirement benefit trust. Under the 

cash balance-type plans in the corporate pension plans, a pension or lump-sum money will be paid on the basis of length of service, 

professional qualification, and age. In addition, under the unfunded retirement benefit plans, lump-sum money will be paid on the 

basis of length of service at certain professional qualification and other factors. Some of the other consolidated subsidiaries have retire-

ment benefit plans and adopt the simplified method in determining liabilities for retirement benefits. Extra retirement benefit may be 

paid upon the retirement of employees of the Group. Retirement benefit trusts were set up on the corporate pension fund plans and 

lump-sum retirement benefit plans for certain banking consolidated subsidiaries.

18
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(a)	The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Balance at beginning of year ¥� 62,709 ¥� 63,320 $� 576,210  
Current service cost 1,845 1,862 16,953  
Interest cost 194 248 1,782  
Actuarial (gains) losses (290) 687 (2,664) 
Benefits paid (3,640) (3,410) (33,446)
Prior service cost incurred (401) (3,684)
Increase due to new consolidation 57 523
Balance at end of year ¥� 60,475 ¥� 62,709 $� 555,683

 (Note) �Consolidated subsidiaries adopted the simplified method in calculating defined benefit obligations, and the retirement benefit costs were 
recognized as “Current service cost.” Extraordinary additional retirement benefits were not included in the table above.

(b)	The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Balance at beginning of year ¥� 65,781 ¥� 66,661 $� 604,438  
Expected return on plan assets 1,909 1,956 17,541 
Actuarial gains (losses) (3,593) (983) (33,014) 
Contributions from the employer 1,605 1,247 14,747 
Benefits paid (2,984) (2,806) (27,418)
Partial return of retirement benefit trusts (294)
Balance at end of year ¥� 62,719 ¥� 65,781 $� 576,302

(c)	Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and 

plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, was as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Funded defined benefit obligation ¥� 58,365 ¥� 60,542 $� 536,295
Plan assets (62,719) (65,781) (576,302)
Total (4,353) (5,238) (39,998)
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 2,110 2,166 19,388
Net (asset) liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥� (2,243) ¥� (3,071) $� (20,610)

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Liability for retirement benefits ¥� 2,437 ¥� 2,785 $� 22,392
Asset for retirement benefits (4,681) (5,857) (43,012)
Net (asset) liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥� (2,243) ¥� (3,071) $� (20,610)

(d)	The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Current service cost ¥� 1,845 ¥� 1,862 $� 16,953
Interest cost 194 248 1,782 
Expected return on plan assets (1,909) (1,956) (17,541)
Recognized actuarial (gains) losses 849 1,209 7,801 
Amortization of prior service cost (30) (275)
Net periodic benefit costs ¥� 949 ¥� 1,363 $� 8,720

(Note) Net periodic benefit costs of consolidated subsidiaries that adopted the simplified method were included in “Current service cost.”
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(e)	Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for 

the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Prior service cost ¥� 370 $� 3,399
Actuarial (losses) gains (2,452) ¥� (461) (22,530)
Total ¥� (2,082) ¥� (461) $� (19,130)

(f )	 Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement ben-

efit plans as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unrecognized prior service cost ¥� (370) $� (3,399)
Unrecognized actuarial (gains) losses 7,590 ¥� 5,137 69,741
Total ¥� 7,219 ¥� 5,137 $� 66,332

(g)	Plan assets

a)Components of plan assets

Plan assets as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Debt investments 27% 26%
Equity investments 20 24
General account of life insurance companies 37 35
Others 16 15
Total 100% 100%

(Note) �Retirement benefit trusts set against the corporate pension plans and lump-sum retirement benefit plans accounted for 15% and 16% of the total 
plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

b)Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets was determined by considering investment performance in the past as well as consider-

ing distribution of plan assets currently and in the future and the long-term rates of return that were expected currently and in the 

future from the various components of the plan assets.

(h)	Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were set forth as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate 0.2% or 0.3% 0.2% or 0.3%
Expected rate of return on plan assets:

Plan assets (excluding the retirement benefit trust) 2.5% or 3.5% 3.0% or 3.5%
Retirement benefit trust 0.5% or 3.0% 0.5% or 2.0%

Expected rate of salary increase 3.7% or 6.0% 3.6% or 5.8%

20

011_0293401372009.indd   20 2020/09/30   13:54:43



11.  Equit y

Japanese banks are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”) and the Banking Law. The significant provisions in 

the Companies Act and the Banking Law that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(a) Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon 

resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria, such as (1) having the Board of Directors, (2) having 

independent auditors, (3) having the Audit & Supervisory Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors is prescribed as one year 

rather than two years of normal term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends (except for dividends 

in kind) at any time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Company meets all of the 

above criteria.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends in kind (noncash assets) to shareholders, subject to a certain limita-

tion and additional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorpora-

tion of the Company so stipulate. The Companies Act and the Banking Law provide certain limitations on the amounts available for 

dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, but 

the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

(b) Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve, and surplus

The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained 

earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the pay-

ment of such dividends until the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 100% of common stock. 

Under the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in common stock and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. 

The Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus, and retained earn-

ings can be transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon resolution by the shareholders.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock upon resolution by the 

Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, 

which is determined using a specific formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate com-

ponent of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury 

stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisi-

tion rights.

12 .  O ther  Income

Other income included gains on sales of stocks and other securities in the amount of ¥4,116 million ($37,820 thousand) and ¥6,249 

million for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

13.  Income Ta xes

The Group is subject to Japanese national and local income taxes, which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax 

rate of approximately 30.4% for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019.
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of 

March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Deferred tax assets:

Reserve for possible loan losses ¥� 19,808 ¥� 20,497 $� 182,008 
Liability for retirement benefits 2,842 2,981 26,114 
Depreciation 1,274 1,303 11,706
Loss on impairment of securities 1,429 1,578 13,130 
Losses on impairment of fixed assets 2,567 1,839 23,587 
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting 26,843 3,457 246,650 
Other 3,160 3,715 29,036

Subtotal 57,925 35,373 532,252
Valuation allowance (4,823) (4,827) (44,316)

Deferred tax assets 53,101 30,545 487,926
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (39,147) (34,580) (359,707)
Deferred income on fixed assets sold (416) (252) (3,822)
Asset for retirement benefits (788) (1,033) (7,240)
Valuation of assets (3,450) (3,793) (31,700)
Other (36) (27) (330)

Deferred tax liabilities (43,838) (39,687) (402,811)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ¥� 9,263 ¥� (9,141) $� 85,114

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying con-

solidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2020 is omitted since the difference is not more than 5% of the normal 

effective statutory tax rate.

2020 2019
Normal effective statutory tax rate 30.4%

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 0.5
Income not taxable for income tax purposes (1.3)
Valuation allowance 0.1
Inhabitant taxes per capita 0.3
Other-net 2.0

Actual effective tax rate 32.0%

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying con-

solidated statement of income for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

14.  Financial  Instruments  and Related Disclosures

(a) Policy for financial instruments

The Group mainly provides banking services and other financial services, such as securities operations and credit card and leasing 

services. In the banking services, the Group procures funds from deposits accepted from individual and corporate customers and from 

short-term financial markets and manages such funds in the form of loans and investments in securities. 

The Group holds substantial financial assets and liabilities that are subject to fluctuations in interest rates and prices. The Group 

conducts Asset-Liability Management (ALM) on the assets and liabilities, including off-balance-sheet transactions of the Group, to 

integrally monitor and control risks and to improve and stabilize profitability with the aim of protecting themselves from the negative 

effects of the fluctuations. The Group also utilizes derivative transactions for this purpose.
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(b) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

i) Financial assets

The significant proportion of financial assets held by the Group is loans, which are primarily provided to domestic corporations and 

individual customers. Loans are subject to credit risk, which represents loss on default caused by deteriorated credit of the borrow-

ers. Additionally, fixed-interest-rate loans are subject to market risk and their fair value is exposed to risk of fluctuation in market 

interest rate.

The second largest proportion of financial assets held by the Group is securities, which include domestic bonds, stocks, foreign 

bonds, and investment trusts. Securities held by the Group are subject to market risk and their fair value is exposed to risk of fluctu-

ation in variable risk factors, including interest rates, stock prices, and exchange rates. The Group is also subject to the liquidity risk, 

and its fair value is exposed to risk of fluctuation in market prices. Certain securities, such as stocks and bonds, are subject to credit 

risk, which represents loss on default caused by deteriorated credit of the issuers.

ii) Financial liabilities

Deposits and marketable funds procured are subject to liquidity risk, which represents the outflow of deposits and an inability to 

raise needed funds caused by deteriorated credit of the Group, as well as losses caused by having to make transactions under un-

favorable conditions. Certain Group’s companies raise funds by borrowing, which are subject to liquidity risk.

In addition, funds procured at fixed interest rates are subject to market risk and their fair value is exposed to risk of fluctuation 

in market interest rate.

iii) Derivatives

The derivative transactions conducted by the Group include interest rate swaps and currency swaps. The Group applies deferred 

hedge and specific matching criteria to transactions undertaken as hedges against risk and evaluates hedge effectiveness on the 

basis of the market price fluctuation rate and the details of the contract. Derivative transactions are subject to credit risk associated 

with the deteriorating credit standing of the counterparty, credit risk of default of the contract, and changing market risk imposed 

by risk factors.

(c) Risk management for financial instruments

i) Basic risk management policy

The Group positions risk management as an important business challenge and enhances organization and system for managing 

risk rigorously. By monitoring various types of risk properly and managing risk by responding to changing financial conditions ap-

propriately, the Group maintains and enhances the financial soundness of the Group and establishes a business foundation.

ii) Integrated risk management

The Group manages integrated risk in order to grasp and combine the various types of risks together in an integrated manner and 

to manage it so that the overall volume of risk does not get too big for management to handle. In addition, the Group has intro-

duced a system for allocating risk capital within the range of shareholders’ equity as a provision against various types of risks, and is 

taking steps to ensure management soundness and to raise profitability and efficiency.

a) Credit risk

The divisions in charge of credit examination and administration of loans have been separated from business promotion divisions, 

and have been performing rigorous loan assessment and management under a system of mutual checks and balances. In addition, 

with regard to credit portfolios, concentration on particular regions, businesses, companies, and groups within the credit portfolios 

is appropriately managed.

A credit-rating system has been introduced to accurately grasp the creditworthiness of customers and to refine the credit risk 

management, and is effectively utilized for determining lending policies and interest rates. The Group improves the accuracy of 

self-assessment by establishing an independent division that performs audit and giving it the ability to perform checks and bal-

ances at branches and the division in charge of credit examination.
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b) Market risk

The Group determines risk acceptance and risk hedge policies in the ALM committee and other committees based on interest rate 

forecasts and profit targets through value at risk (VaR) method to ensure stable profitability.

Financial instruments influenced by interest rate risks are deposits; loans and bills discounted; and bonds and derivatives relat-

ed to interest rate. Financial instruments influenced by stock price volatility risks are bonds, stocks, mutual funds related to stocks, 

and derivatives related to stocks. Higo Bank and Kagoshima Bank separately calculate and manage market risk.

Higo Bank calculates VaR based primarily on the historical simulation method (a holding period from 10 days to 6 months, a 

confidence interval of 99%, and observation period of 5 years). As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, VaR related to interest rate risks was 

¥11,900 million ($109,344 thousand) and ¥6,800 million and VaR related to price volatility risks was ¥19,900 million ($182,853 thou-

sand) and ¥17,200 million, respectively.

Kagoshima Bank calculates VaR based on the historical simulation method (a holding period of 1 0 days to 6 months, a con-

fidence interval of 99%, and observation period of 5 years). As of March 31, 2020 and 2019, VaR related to interest rate risks was 

¥13,600 million ($124,965 thousand) and ¥8,500 million and VaR related to price volatility risks was ¥18,900 million ($173,665 thou-

sand) and ¥18,100 million, respectively.

Both banks perform back-testing to validate VaR periodically. However, VaR measures the amount of market risk by certain 

occurrence probabilities, which are statistically calculated based on past market movements. Therefore, there are cases in which 

VaR cannot capture risk under sudden and drastic changes in market beyond normal circumstances. The Group does not apply 

quantitative analysis to certain financial instruments that are small in value and financial instruments held by certain consolidated 

subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

c) Liquidity risk

�Management department of liquidity risk grasps and analyzes the uses of funds on a daily, weekly, and monthly basis, and con-

ducts appropriate procurement of funds from the market, as necessary. In addition, to provide for contingencies, the Group has 

established action plans and a reporting system, depending on the relative tightness of its cash position, so that it can swiftly re-

spond to any situation.

(d) Supplemental explanation for fair value of financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments include market prices as well as reasonably calculated prices in cases where there are no market 

prices available. As the calculations of the reasonably calculated prices are implemented under certain conditions and assumptions, 

the result of calculations would differ if such calculations are made under different conditions and assumptions.

(e) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair values and carrying amounts of financial instruments as of March 31, 2020 and 2019, are shown below. Immaterial accounts in the 

consolidated balance sheet are not included in the table below. Some instruments, such as unlisted stocks, whose fair values cannot 

be reliably determined, are not included in the table below (see Note 15 (e) (Note 2)).
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Millions of yen
2020

Carrying 
amount Fair value

Net unrealized
gains (losses)

(1) Cash and due from banks ¥� 1,173,509 ¥� 1,173,509
(2) Call loans and bills bought 388 388
(3) Trading assets

Trading securities 863 863
(4) Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 18,760 18,874 ¥� 113
Available-for-sale securities 2,177,836 2,177,836

(5) Loans and bills discounted 7,186,901
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1) (62,775)

7,124,125 7,178,834 54,709
Total assets 10,495,484 10,550,307 54,822

(1) Deposits 8,766,321 8,766,791 470
(2) Call money and bills sold 12,733 12,733
(3) Payables under repurchase agreements 232,754 232,754
(4) Borrowing under securities lending transactions 647,317 647,317
(5) Borrowed money 594,946 594,941 (5)

Total liabilities 10,254,074 10,254,539 465

Derivatives (*2)
For which hedge accounting is not applied (631) (631)
For which hedge accounting is applied (88,133) (88,133)

Total ¥� (88,765) ¥� (88,765)

Millions of yen
2019

Carrying 
amount Fair value

Net unrealized
gains (losses)

(1) Cash and due from banks ¥� 1,211,471 ¥� 1,211,471
(2) Call loans and bills bought 314 314
(3) Trading assets

Trading securities 1,183 1,183
(4) Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 14,716 14,830 ¥� 114
Available-for-sale securities 1,983,197 1,983,197

(5) Loans and bills discounted 6,853,138
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1) (63,218)

6,789,919 6,847,057 57,137
Total assets 10,000,803 10,058,054 57,251

(1) Deposits 8,567,557 8,568,115 558
(2) Call money and bills sold
(3) Payables under repurchase agreements 207,630 207,630
(4) Borrowing under securities lending transactions 479,347 479,347
(5) Borrowed money 402,402 402,406 4

Total liabilities 9,656,937 9,657,500 563

Derivatives (*2)
For which hedge accounting is not applied 458 458
For which hedge accounting is applied (11,423) (11,423)

Total ¥� (10,965) ¥� (10,965)

25

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

011_0293401372009.indd   25 2020/09/30   13:54:44



Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Carrying 
amount Fair value

Net unrealized
gains (losses)

(1) Cash and due from banks $�10,782,955 $�10,782,955
(2) Call loans and bills bought 3,565 3,565 
(3) Trading assets

Trading securities 7,929 7,929
(4) Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 172,378 173,426 $� 1,038
Available-for-sale securities 20,011,357 20,011,357

(5) Loans and bills discounted 66,037,866
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1) (576,817)

65,461,040 65,963,741 502,701
Total assets 96,439,253 96,943,002 503,739

(1) Deposits 80,550,592 80,554,911 4,318
(2) Call money and bills sold 116,998 116,998
(3) Payables under repurchase agreements 2,138,693 2,138,693
(4) Borrowing under securities lending transactions 5,947,964 5,947,964
(5) Borrowed money 5,466,746 5,466,700 (45)

Total liabilities 94,221,023 94,225,296 4,272

Derivatives (*2)
For which hedge accounting is not applied (5,798) (5,798)
For which hedge accounting is applied (809,822) (809,822)

Total $� (815,629) $� (815,629)

(*1)	� General reserve for possible loan losses and specific reserve for possible loan losses provided to loans and bills discounted are separately presented in 
the table above.

(*2)	� Derivatives recorded in trading assets, trading liabilities, other assets, and other liabilities are aggregated and shown herein. Assets and liabilities 
attributable to the derivative contracts are totally offset and the net liability position as a consequence of offsetting would be represented within 
brackets.

(Note 1) Valuation method of financial instruments

Assets

(1) Cash and due from banks

With regard to amounts due from banks without maturity and short-term (within one year) due from banks, as these instruments are 

settled within a short term and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying amounts are assumed as their 

fair value.

(2) Call loans and bills bought

As maturity of these instruments is within one year and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying 

amounts are assumed as their fair value.

(3) Trading assets

The fair value of securities, such as debt securities held for trading purposes, is determined based on their prices quoted by the stock 

exchanges or their quoted prices obtained from financial institutions.

(4) Securities

The fair value of equity securities is determined mainly based on their prices quoted by the stock exchanges. The fair value of bonds is 

determined based on their prices quoted by the exchanges or at rates indicated by financial institutions handling these transactions 

for the Group. The fair value of investment trusts is based on the base value publicly disclosed. 

The fair value of privately placed bonds guaranteed by the Group is calculated using the same method as described in “(5) Loans 

and bills discounted” accounted below. 

For information pertaining to investment securities for holding purposes, please refer to Note 4.

(5) Loans and bills discounted

As loans bearing floating rates of interest reflect market rates of interest in the short term, unless credit conditions of the lending 

entity have changed significantly after lending the loans, their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, so their carrying 

amounts are assumed as their fair value. Fixed-rate loans are segmented by loan type, internal rating, and period, and their fair value is 
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determined by discounting the total amount of principal and interest by the interest rate that consists of the swap rate and the credit 

spread or the assumed interest rate on a new lending of the same type. 

The fair value of loans lent to entities that are legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt, or possibly bankrupt is determined according to 

the current value of expected future cash flows or the amount of collateral that is expected to be recoverable and guarantee amounts 

that are determined to be recoverable. As these amounts are nearly identical to the carrying amounts after deducting the allowance 

for doubtful accounts, these amounts are assumed as their fair value. 

For loans that are fully secured by collateral and that have no specified repayment term, as in terms of their expected repayment 

periods and interest conditions, their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying amounts are assumed as their 

fair value.

Liabilities

(1) Deposits

For demand deposits, fair value is assumed as the amount to be paid when demanded on the consolidated balance sheet date (i.e., 

the carrying amounts). The fair value of time deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit is determined by segmenting such depos-

its by term and discounting future cash flows to their current value. The discount rate used is the rate of interest on new deposits of 

the same type. For foreign currency time deposits, as the term is short (within one year) and their fair value and carrying amounts are 

nearly identical, so their carrying amounts are assumed as their fair value.

(2) Call money and bills sold

As maturity of these instruments is within one year and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying 

amounts are assumed as their fair value.

(3) Payables under repurchase agreements

As their remaining term is short (within one year) and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying amounts 

are assumed as their fair value.

(4) Borrowing under securities lending transactions

As their remaining term is short (within one year) and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their carrying amounts 

are assumed as their fair value.

(5) Borrowed money

As borrowed money bearing floating rates of interest reflects market rates of interest in the short term, the credit conditions of the 

Group have not changed significantly after lending the loans and their fair value and carrying amounts are nearly identical, their car-

rying amounts are assumed as their fair value. For those with fixed-rate interest, the fair value is determined by segmenting such bor-

rowed money by term and discounting the total amount of principal and interest by the rate of interest on new borrowings of the 

same type. As for borrowed money that has a short repayment term (within one year), their carrying amounts are assumed as their fair 

price, since its fair value and the carrying amount are nearly identical.

Derivatives

The information of the fair value for derivatives is included in Note 16.

(Note 2) Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined

The following instruments are not included in “Assets (4) Securities” in the table above showing the fair value of financial instruments as 

of March 31, 2020 and 2019:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unlisted stocks (*1 and *2) ¥� 4,828 ¥� 4,529 $� 44,362
Investments in partnerships and others (*3) 15,515 10,411 142,561
Total ¥� 20,344 ¥� 14,941 $� 186,933

(*1)	 Fair value of unlisted stocks is exempt from disclosure because they do not have a market price and their fair value cannot be reliably determined.
(*2)	� The Group wrote off unlisted stocks amounting to ¥32 million ($294 thousand) and ¥2 million for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
(*3)	� Investments in partnerships and others, the assets of which comprise equity securities without a readily available market price, are out of the scope of 

fair values disclosure because the fair value of those investments cannot be reliably determined.

27

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

011_0293401372009.indd   27 2020/09/30   13:54:44



(Note 3) Maturity analysis for claims and securities with contractual maturities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019

Millions of yen
2020

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Due from banks ¥� 1,074,214
Call loans and bills bought 388
Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 4,752 ¥� 6,588 ¥� 6,851 ¥� 568
Corporate bonds 4,752 6,588 6,851 568

Available-for-sale securities with maturity 226,708 178,888 201,881 106,930 ¥� 236,381 ¥� 980,703
Japanese government bonds 125,286 32,743 23,609 5,143 38,342 233,267
Municipal government bonds 23,067 25,649 25,471 30,045 40,498 102,807
Corporate bonds 67,060 85,062 62,716 21,578 34,178 216,156

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 1,712,989 1,142,022 953,760 713,211 774,567 1,808,633
Total ¥� 3,019,052 ¥� 1,327,498 ¥� 1,162,493 ¥� 820,710 ¥� 1,010,949 ¥� 2,789,336

Millions of yen
2019

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Due from banks ¥� 1,107,758
Call loans and bills bought 314
Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 2,966 ¥� 6,502 ¥� 4,695 ¥� 551
Corporate bonds 2,966 6,502 4,695 551

Available-for-sale securities with maturity 316,622 330,597 165,788 139,221 ¥� 158,453 ¥� 639,656
Japanese government bonds 158,861 135,859 30,075 23,322 133,384
Municipal government bonds 27,453 35,012 20,767 23,200 45,501 84,891
Corporate bonds 92,488 128,295 64,837 22,280 25,689 194,185

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 1,670,326 1,121,318 907,504 624,862 782,117 1,662,445
Total ¥� 3,097,988 ¥� 1,458,417 ¥� 1,077,988 ¥� 764,635 ¥� 940,570 ¥� 2,302,102

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Due from banks $� 9,870,568 
Call loans and bills bought 3,565 
Securities

Held-to-maturity debt securities 43,664 $� 60,534 $� 62,951 $� 5,219 
Corporate bonds 43,664 60,534 62,951 5,219 

Available-for-sale securities with maturity 2,083,138 1,643,737 1,855,012 982,541 $� 2,172,020 $� 9,011,329 
Japanese government bonds 1,151,208 300,863 216,934 47,257 352,310 2,143,407 
Municipal government bonds 211,954 235,679 234,043 276,072 372,121 944,656 
Corporate bonds 616,190 781,604 576,274 198,272 314,049 1,986,180 

Loans and bills discounted (*1) 15,740,044 10,493,632 8,763,759 6,553,441 7,117,219 16,618,882
Total $�27,740,990 $�12,197,904 $�10,681,732 $� 7,541,211 $� 9,289,249 $�25,630,212

(*1)	� Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loans to “Legally bankrupt” borrowers, loans to “Virtually 
bankrupt” borrowers, and loans to “Possibly bankruptcy” borrowers, amounting to ¥81,716 million ($750,859 thousand) (¥84,564 million in 2019), is not 
included in the table above.
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(Note 4) Maturity analysis for interest-bearing liabilities as of March 31, 2020 and 2019

Millions of yen
2020

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Deposits (*1) ¥� 8,554,484 ¥� 179,677 ¥� 26,648 ¥� 2,450 ¥� 3,059
Call money and bills sold 12,733
Payables under repurchase agreements 232,754
Borrowing under securities lending 

transactions 647,317
Borrowed money 316,912 85,493 192,541

Total ¥� 9,764,202 ¥� 265,171 ¥� 219,190 ¥� 2,450 ¥� 3,059

Millions of yen
2019

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Deposits (*1) ¥� 8,338,765 ¥� 197,131 ¥� 25,855 ¥� 2,273 ¥� 3,530
Call money and bills sold
Payables under repurchase agreements 207,630
Borrowing under securities lending 

transactions 479,347
Borrowed money 314,177 85,501 2,713 10

Total ¥� 9,339,920 ¥� 282,632 ¥� 28,569 ¥� 2,283 ¥� 3,530

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Within 1 year 
1 year to 3 

years
3 years to 5 

years
5 years to 7 

years
7 years to 10 

years
More than 10 

years

Deposits (*1) $�78,604,098 $� 1,650,987 $� 244,858 $� 22,512 $� 28,108 
Call money and bills sold 116,998
Payables under repurchase agreements 2,138,693 
Borrowing under securities lending 

transactions 5,947,964 
Borrowed money 2,911,991 785,564 1,769,190

Total $�89,719,764 $� 2,436,561 $� 2,014,058 $� 22,512 $� 28,108

(*1)	 Deposits on demand (current deposit, ordinary deposit, and deposit at notice) are included in “one year or less.”

15.  Derivative Financial  Instruments

(a) Derivative financial instruments used by the Group

The Group enters into transactions with interest rate swaps, currency swaps, and foreign exchange forward contracts.

The Group executes these derivative transactions in order to manage and hedge the risks associated with interest rate fluctuations 

and exposure to changes in the market value of assets and liabilities held by the Group. In addition, the banks enter into derivative 

transactions for trading purposes, within the position and loss limits established by the Group.

(b) Risks on derivative transactions

The major risks associated with derivative transactions, which have the potential to materially impact the Group’s financial condition, 

are market and credit.

Market risk is related to the increase and decrease in the fair value of the positions held by the Group due to changes in the mar-

ket price and interest rates of the underlying assets. Market risk is also subject to changes in liquidity and the volatility of the markets. 

Credit risk refers to possible losses on the positions held by the Group, which result from a counterparty’s failure to perform according 

to the terms and conditions of the contract.

29

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

011_0293401372009.indd   29 2020/09/30   13:54:44



The banking consolidated subsidiaries mainly apply a quantitative measurement method in order to capture market risk. The bank-

ing consolidated subsidiaries monitor the outstanding balance and profit and loss for each type of transaction on a daily basis. In ad-

dition, the banking consolidated subsidiaries apply a “VaR” measurement method to transactions for which it is considered necessary 

to apply a more sophisticated method. The Group manages credit risk by establishing credit limits for counterparties. Reviews of the 

adequacy of established credit lines are made on a regular basis and as deemed necessary.

(c) Risk management system of the Group

The Group exercises and controls the derivative transactions using limits, including position limits, credit limits for each counterparty, 

and stop-loss limits, in accordance with the Group’s policy on derivative transactions. Risks quantified are reported to the department 

and the director responsible for monitoring the transactions and the Board of Directors. The front-office function and the back-office 

function are segregated. The middle office is responsible for risk management and monitors front and back offices’ compliance with 

regulations and internal rules.

Contract amounts or notional principal amounts of derivative financial instruments disclosed represent nominal contract amounts 

or the notional principal amounts set up for the calculation of the settlement amounts. Generally, they do not represent the amounts 

for which the actual assets are exchanged. These amounts do not represent, by themselves, the volume of market risk and credit risk 

related to the underlying derivative financial instruments.

(d) Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting was not applied as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.

i) Interest rate-related transactions

There were no interest rate-related transactions as of March 31, 2020 and 2019.

ii) Currency-related transactions

Millions of yen
2020

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more  
than one year Fair value

Unrealized
gains (losses)

Currency swaps ¥� 61,105 ¥� 43,685 ¥� (55) ¥� 189
Foreign exchange forward contracts:

Selling 43,417 1,510 (223) (223)
Buying 149,201 1,582 (352) (352)

Millions of yen
2019

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more  
than one year Fair value

Unrealized
gains (losses)

Currency swaps ¥� 46,191 ¥� 23,780 ¥� 224 ¥� 69
Foreign exchange forward contracts:

Selling 28,141 25 248 248
Buying 10,852 23 (14) (14)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more  
than one year Fair value

Unrealized
gains (losses)

Currency swaps $� 561,472 $� 401,405 $� (505) $� 1,736
Foreign exchange forward contracts:

Selling 398,943 13,874 (2,049) (2,049)
Buying 1,370,954 14,536 (3,234) (3,234)

Notes:	1.	Derivative transactions shown above are stated at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
		  2.	Calculation or quotation of fair value of the above derivatives is based on the discounted present value method, etc.
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Derivative transactions to which hedge accounting was applied as of March 31, 2020 and 2019

i) Interest rate-related transactions

Millions of yen
2020

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Interest rate swaps:

Receive floating and pay fixed
Loans and bills discounted
Available-for-sale securities
(debt securities) ¥� 477,862 ¥� 443,726 ¥� (88,358)

Specific matching criteria
Interest rate swaps:

Receive fixed and pay floating Loans and bills discounted 7,280 7,280
(Note 3)

Receive floating and pay fixed 78,675 76,759

Millions of yen
2019

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Interest rate swaps:

Receive floating and pay fixed
Loans and bills discounted
Available-for-sale securities
(debt securities) ¥� 303,774 ¥� 259,461 ¥� (11,328)

Specific matching criteria
Interest rate swaps:

Receive fixed and pay floating Loans and bills discounted 7,320 7,320 (Note 3)
Receive floating and pay fixed 88,386 83,583

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Interest rate swaps:

Receive floating and pay fixed
Loans and bills discounted
Available-for-sale securities
(debt securities) $� 4,390,903 $� 4,077,239 $� (811,890)

Specific matching criteria
Interest rate swaps:

Receive fixed and pay floating Loans and bills discounted 66,893 66,893 
(Note 3)

Receive floating and pay fixed 722,916 705,311

Notes:	1.	�For the interest rate swaps shown above, deferred hedge accounting is applied in accordance with JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24, 
which was issued on February 13, 2002.

		  2.	�Fair values of the exchange traded derivatives are based on quoted market prices, such as those of Tokyo Financial Exchange, Inc.
				�    Calculation or quotation of fair value of the over-the-counter traded derivatives is based on the discounted present value method or option-

pricing models, etc.
		  3.	�The interest rate swaps that qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not measured at market value, but the differential 

paid or received under the swap agreements is recognized and included in interest expense or income. In addition, the fair value of such interest 
rate swaps is included in that of loans and bills discounted (the hedged items) stated in Note 15. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures.
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ii) Currency-related transactions

Millions of yen
2020

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Currency swaps Loans and bills discounted ¥� 17,380 ¥� 17,380 ¥� 225

Millions of yen
2019

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Currency swaps Loans and bills discounted ¥� 11,421 ¥� 11,421 ¥� (94)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Hedged item

Contractual  
value or notional 
principal amount

Including more than 
one year Fair value

Deferred method
Currency swaps Loans and bills discounted $� 159,698 $� 159,698 $� 2,067

Notes:	1.	�For the currency swaps shown above, deferred hedge accounting is applied in accordance with JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 2 5, 
which was issued on July 29, 2002.

		  2.	Calculation of fair value of the above derivatives is based on the discounted present value method, etc.

16.  O ther  Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019, were as follows:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

2020 2019 2020
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities:

Gains (losses) arising during the year ¥� 21,602 ¥� 18,668 $� 198,493
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 1,523 (3,250) 13,994
Amount before income tax effect 23,125 15,418 212,487
Income tax effect (7,329) (4,710) (67,343)

Total 15,796 10,708 145,143
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting:

Gains (losses) arising during the year (78,955) (10,235) (725,489)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 2,027 1,558 18,625
Amount before income tax effect (76,928) (8,676) (706,863)
Income tax effect 23,386 2,637 214,885

Total (53,542) (6,039) (491,978)
Defined retirement benefit plans:

Gains (losses) arising during the year (2,901) (1,670) (26,656)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 819 1,209 7,525
Amount before income tax effect (2,082) (461) (19,130)
Income tax effect 632 140 5,807

Total (1,449) (321) (13,314)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ¥� (39,194) ¥� 4,347 $� (360,139)
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17.  Business  Combinations

Business combination by acquisition

1. Outline of the business combination

a) Name of the acquired company and its business outline

JR Kyushu Financial Management Company (leasing business, cash management services and financial shared services operations)

b) Main reasons for business combination

The Group has launched “2nd Medium-Term Management Plan” since April 2018 toward the realization of “Becoming one of the 

largest financial groups in the Kyushu region,” representing the Group’s management philosophy and vision.

We have determined that through this share acquisition, the Group will be able to provide customers with more enhanced solutions, 

strengthen the Group’s management foundation, and further enhance its corporate value, by enhancing its “regional comprehensive 

financial function” and reinforcing its “function of promoting regional industry,” which are the key pillars under the medium-term 

management plan.

Cash management services business and financial shared services operations business for JR Kyushu Group conducted by JR 

Kyushu Financial Management Company have been succeeded by JR Kyushu Business Partners Company, a subsidiary of Kyushu 

Railway Company, through the absorption-type company split effective October 1, 2019.

c) Date of the business combination

October 2, 2019

d) Legal form of the business combination

Share acquisition in consideration for cash

e) Name of the company after the business combination

JR Kyushu FG Lease, Inc.

f ) Ratio of voting rights acquired

90%

g) Basis for determining the acquirer

It is based on the fact that the Higo Bank, Ltd. acquired shares in consideration for cash.

2. The period for which the operations of the acquired company are included in the consolidated statement of income

From October 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

3. Acquisition cost and breakdowns by type of consideration

This information is not disclosed pursuant to confidential obligations between the parties, but is representative of fair value. Such 

transaction price was evaluated by an independent appraiser.

4.Major acquisition-related costs

Due diligence costs, etc.	 ¥28 million ($257 thousand)

5. Amount of goodwill incurred, reasons for the goodwill incurred, and the method and period of amortization

(1) Amount of goodwill incurred

¥935 million ($8,591 thousand)
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(2) Reasons for the goodwill incurred

Goodwill is incurred from the difference between equity interest in the acquired company and its acquisition value.

(3) Method and period of amortization

Goodwill was amortized in lump sum in the year ended March 31, 2020.

6. The assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as follows:

Total assets	 ¥18,126 million	 ($166,553 thousand)

of which, other assets (accounts receivable)	 4,536 million	 ($41,679 thousand)

of which, lease receivables and investment assets	 10,138 million	 ($93,154 thousand)

Total liabilities	 ¥17,641 million	 ($162,096 thousand)

of which, borrowed money	 16,647 million	 ($152,963 thousand)

7. Estimates of impacts on the consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2020 and its calculation method, as-

suming the business combination had been completed on the beginning date of the current fiscal year

This information is omitted because it is immaterial.

18.  Segment Information

Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on 

Accounting Standard for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial and descriptive information about 

its reportable segments. Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that meet specified 

criteria. Operating segments are components of an entity about which separate financial information is available and such informa-

tion is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. 

Generally, segment information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment 

performance and deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

(a) Description of reportable segments

The Group’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular evaluation by the 

Company’s management is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among the Group. Therefore, the Group’s 

reportable segments consist of banking and leasing. Banking consists of deposit taking, lending, domestic and foreign exchange trans-

actions, and securities trading. Leasing consists of leasing and lending.

Leasing and lending businesses of JR Kyushu FG Lease, Inc., which was acquired in the year ended March 3 1, 2 0 2 0, are included in 

“Leasing.”

 

(b) Methods of measurement for the amounts of ordinary income, profit (loss), assets, and other items for each reportable segment 

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with those disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting 

Policies.”
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(c) Information about ordinary income, profit (loss), assets, and other items was as follows:

Millions of yen

2020

Reportable segment

Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated

Banking

Leasing TotalHigo Bank Kagoshima Bank Subtotal

Ordinary income:

Ordinary income by external 
customers ¥� 74,098 ¥� 63,327 ¥� 137,426 ¥� 31,184 ¥� 168,610 ¥� 5,324 ¥� 173,935 ¥� (1,794) ¥� 172,140

Intersegment ordinary income 534 1,081 1,616 1,749 3,366 4,036 7,402 (7,402)

Total ¥� 74,633 ¥� 64,408 ¥� 139,042 ¥� 32,934 ¥� 171,976 ¥� 9,360 ¥� 181,337 ¥� (9,197) ¥� 172,140

Segment profit ¥� 18,559 ¥� 16,216 ¥� 34,775 ¥� 1,349 ¥� 36,125 ¥� 1,090 ¥� 37,215 ¥� (10,182) ¥� 27,033

Segment assets 6,018,601 5,027,719 11,046,321 105,593 11,151,915 31,696 11,183,611 (103,814) 11,079,796

Other:

Depreciation 3,833 2,970 6,803 118 6,921 333 7,255 165 7,421

Interest income 52,442 48,238 100,680 110 100,791 180 100,971 (2,317) 98,654

Interest expenses 8,507 3,381 11,889 280 12,169 40 12,210 (376) 11,834

Increase in fixed assets and 
intangible assets 6,260 11,655 17,916 117 18,033 291 18,324 1,642 19,967

Notes:	1.	�Ordinary income means total income, less certain special income included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of 
income.

		  2.	“Other” consists of other banking-related activities, such as credit card operations.
		  3.	Reconciliations include items below:
				    a.	�The reconciliations of ordinary income by external customers of ¥(1,794) million ($(16,484) thousand) include reconciliations of ordinary income 

in accordance with purchase method application of ¥(1,865) million ($(17,136) thousand).
				    b.	�The segment profit reconciliations of ¥(10,182) million ($(93,558) thousand) include reconciliations of profit in accordance with purchase method 

application of ¥(8,514) million ($(78,232) thousand) and amortization of goodwill of ¥(935) million ($(8,591) thousand).
				    c.	� The interest income reconciliations in “Other” of ¥(2,317) million ($(21,290) thousand) include reconciliations of interest income in accordance 

with purchase method application of ¥(1,421) million ($(13,057) thousand).
				    d.	�Reconciliations of segment assets and interest expenses were eliminations of intersegment transactions. Reconciliations of depreciation and 

increase in fixed assets and intangible assets were increases in the depreciation, fixed assets and intangible assets not allocated to reportable 
segments.

		  4.	Segment profit is reflected as an adjustment to ordinary profit in the consolidated statement of income.

Millions of yen

2019

Reportable segment

Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated

Banking

Leasing TotalHigo Bank Kagoshima Bank Subtotal

Ordinary income:

Ordinary income by external 
customers ¥� 75,173 ¥� 64,288 ¥� 139,461 ¥� 28,829 ¥� 168,290 ¥� 5,006 ¥� 173,297 ¥� (2,974) ¥� 170,322

Intersegment ordinary income 485 931 1,416 1,681 3,098 4,277 7,375 (7,375)

Total ¥� 75,658 ¥� 65,219 ¥� 140,878 ¥� 30,510 ¥� 171,388 ¥� 9,284 ¥� 180,672 ¥� (10,350) ¥� 170,322

Segment profit ¥� 18,170 ¥� 17,418 ¥� 35,588 ¥� 1,596 ¥� 37,185 ¥� 1,125 ¥� 38,310 ¥� (4,592) ¥� 33,717

Segment assets 5,830,251 4,576,181 10,406,433 85,735 10,492,168 33,694 10,525,863 (81,273) 10,444,589

Other:

Depreciation 3,838 2,746 6,585 93 6,678 371 7,050 161 7,212

Interest income 52,412 48,434 100,846 59 100,906 208 101,114 (2,994) 98,120

Interest expenses 5,845 1,961 7,807 236 8,043 39 8,083 (322) 7,760

Increase in fixed assets and 
intangible assets 2,780 7,706 10,487 117 10,604 106 10,711 2,417 13,128

Notes:	1.	�Ordinary income means total income, less certain special income included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of 
income.

		  2.	“Other” consists of other banking-related activities, such as credit card operations.
		  3.	Reconciliations include items below:
				    a.	�The reconciliations of ordinary income by external customers of ¥(2,974) million include reconciliations of ordinary income in accordance with 

purchase method application of ¥(2,979) million.
				    b.	�The segment profit reconciliations of ¥(4,592) million include reconciliations of profit in accordance with purchase method application of ¥(3,766) 

million.
				    c.	� The interest income reconciliations in “Other” of ¥(2,994) million include reconciliations of interest income in accordance with purchase method 

application of ¥(2,161) million.
				    d.	�Reconciliations of segment assets and interest expenses were eliminations of intersegment transactions. Reconciliations of depreciation and 

increase in fixed assets and intangible assets were reconciliations in lease investments assets.
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		  4.	Segment profit is reflected as an adjustment to ordinary profit in the consolidated statement of income.

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2020

Reportable segment

Other Total Reconciliations Consolidated

Banking

Leasing TotalHigo Bank Kagoshima Bank Subtotal

Ordinary income:

Ordinary income by external 
customers $� 680,860 $� 581,889 $�1,262,758 $� 286,538 $�1,549,297 $� 48,920 $�1,598,226 $� (16,484) $�1,581,732

Intersegment ordinary income 4,906 9,932 14,848 16,070 30,928 37,085 68,014 (68,014)

Total $� 685,775 $� 591,822 $�1,277,607 $� 302,618 $�1,580,226 $� 86,005 $�1,666,240 $� (84,507) $�1,581,732

Segment profit $� 170,532 $� 149,003 $� 319,535 $� 12,395 $� 331,939 $� 10,015 $� 341,955 $� (93,558) $� 248,396

Segment assets 55,302,774 46,197,914 101,500,698 970,256 102,470,963 291,243 102,762,207 (953,909) 101,808,288 

Other:

Depreciation 35,220 27,290 62,510 1,084 63,594 3,059 66,663 1,516 68,188 

Interest income 481,870 443,241 925,112 1,010 926,132 1,653 927,786 (21,290) 906,496 

Interest expenses 78,167 31,066 109,243 2,572 111,816 367 112,193 (3,454) 108,738 

Increase in fixed assets and 
intangible assets 57,520 107,093 164,623 1,075 165,698 2,673 168,372 15,087 183,469

Related information

(a) Segment information by service

Millions of yen
2020

Lending
Securities 

investment Leasing Others Total
Ordinary income by external customers ¥� 71,302 ¥� 41,784 ¥� 31,059 ¥� 27,993 ¥� 172,140

Millions of yen
2019

Lending
Securities 

investment Leasing Others Total
Ordinary income by external customers ¥� 70,254 ¥� 43,087 ¥� 28,684 ¥� 28,296 ¥� 170,322

Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020

Lending
Securities 

investment Leasing Others Total
Ordinary income by external customers $� 655,168 $� 383,938 $� 285,390 $� 257,217 $� 1,581,732 

Note: Instead of the net sales of a nonfinancial company, ordinary income is presented.

(b) Segment information by geographic area

Segment information by geographic area is not disclosed as more than 90% of the total consolidated ordinary income and tangible 

fixed assets of the Group resides in Japan.

(c) Segment information by major customer

Segment information by major customers is not disclosed as there was no customer for which ordinary income was more than 10% of 

total ordinary income.
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19.  Subsequent  Events

Appropriations of Retained Earnings

The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2020, was approved at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 

May 13, 2020:

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥6.00 ($0.05) per share ¥� 2,639 $� 24,248
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars

2020 2019 2020
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks ¥� 688,379 ¥� 945,255 $� 6,325,268
Call loans 388 314 3,565 
Monetary claims purchased 726 1,062 6,670 
Trading assets 45 273 413 
Money held in trust 4,838 4,841 44,454 
Securities 1,367,552 1,208,958 12,565,946 
Loans and bills discounted 3,696,443 3,488,486 33,965,294 
Foreign exchange assets 5,791 7,609 53,211 
Other assets 201,444 130,829 1,850,996 
Fixed assets 49,163 49,620 451,741 
Intangible assets 6,897 4,803 63,374 
Prepaid pension cost 3,726 2,610 34,236 
Deferred tax assets 5,634 51,768
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 9,979 9,402 91,693 
Reserve for possible loan losses (22,018) (22,299) (202,315)

Total assets ¥� 6,018,993 ¥� 5,831,767 $�55,306,376

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Deposits ¥� 4,677,499 ¥� 4,623,028 $�42,979,867
Call money 9,250 84,994
Payables under repurchase agreements 129,434 148,888 1,189,322 
Borrowing under securities lending transactions 499,938 406,595 4,593,751 
Trading liabilities 11 101 
Borrowed money 282,963 275,937 2,600,045 
Foreign exchange liabilities 18 74 165 
Borrowed money from trust account 1,461 13,424
Other liabilities 104,273 47,033 958,127 
Reserve for retirement benefits 256  
Reserve for repayments for dormant deposits 1,038 1,206 9,537 
Reserve for contingent losses 253 260 2,324 
Deferred tax liabilities 3,207  
Deferred tax liabilities related to land revaluation 4,395 4,443 40,384 
Acceptances and guarantees 9,979 9,402 91,693

Total liabilities 5,720,519 5,520,335 52,563,805

Equity
Common stock 18,128 18,128 166,571 
Capital surplus 8,133 8,133 74,731 
Retained earnings 258,252 248,025 2,372,985 
Valuation and translation adjustments:

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 56,464 39,171 518,827 
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting (48,285) (7,882) (443,673)
Excess of land revaluation 5,779 5,855 53,101

Total valuation and translation adjustments 13,959 37,143 128,264
Total equity 298,474 311,432 2,742,570
Total liabilities and equity ¥� 6,018,993 ¥� 5,831,767 $�55,306,376
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars

2020 2019 2020
Income:
Interest income:

Interest on loans and discounts ¥� 34,609 ¥� 33,927 $� 318,009 
Interest and dividends on securities 17,549 18,165 161,251 
Other interest income 284 320 2,609 

Trust fees 25 229
Fees and commissions income 10,794 11,040 99,182 
Trading income 28 32 257 
Other operating income 7,556 7,261 69,429 
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 394 5 3,620
Other income 3,786 4,910 34,788

Total income 75,027 75,663 689,396

Expenses:
Interest expenses:

Interest on deposits 364 377 3,344 
Other interest expenses 8,142 5,468 74,813 

Fees and commissions expenses 4,488 4,134 41,238 
Other operating expenses 5,164 8,596 47,450 
General and administrative expenses 35,697 36,810 328,006 
Provision for possible loan losses 158 624 1,451 
Losses on disposal of fixed assets 327 112 3,004 
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets 43  
Other expenses 2,057 1,477 18,901

Total expenses 56,401 57,644 518,248
Income before income taxes 18,626 18,019 171,147
Income taxes:

Current 4,627 5,447 42,515
Deferred 1,138 77 10,456

Total income taxes 5,765 5,524 52,972
Net income ¥� 12,860 ¥� 12,495 $� 118,165
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Millions of yen
Common 

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥� 18,128 ¥� 8,133 ¥�238,030
Cash dividends (2,718)
Net income 12,495
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 217
Net change in the year

Balance at April 1, 2019 ¥� 18,128 ¥� 8,133 ¥�248,025
Cash dividends (2,709)
Net income 12,860
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 75
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 ¥� 18,128 ¥� 8,133 ¥�258,252

Millions of yen
Valuation and translation adjustments

Unrealized 
gains  (losses) 

on available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Total valuation 
and translation 

adjustments
Total 

equity

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥� 34,217 ¥� (1,866) ¥� 6,072 ¥� 38,423 ¥�302,716
Cash dividends (2,718)
Net income 12,495
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 217
Net change in the year 4,954 (6,016) (217) (1,279) (1,279)

Balance at April 1, 2019 ¥� 39,171 ¥� (7,882) ¥� 5,855 ¥� 37,143 ¥�311,432
Cash dividends (2,709)
Net income 12,860
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 75
Net change in the year 17,292 (40,402) (75) (23,184) (23,184)

Balance at March 31, 2020 ¥� 56,464 ¥� (48,285) ¥� 5,779 ¥� 13,959 ¥�298,474

43

Non-Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

The Higo Bank, Ltd.
Non-Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Years ended March 31, 2020 and 2019

012_0293401372009.indd   43 2020/10/27   4:27:18



Thousands of U.S. dollars
Common

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2019 $� 166,571 $� 74,731 $�2,279,013
Cash dividends (24,892)
Net income 118,165 
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 689
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 166,571 $� 74,731 $�2,372,985

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Valuation and translation adjustments

Unrealized 
gains (losses) on 

available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Total valuation 
and translation 

adjustments
Total 

equity

Balance at April 1, 2019 $� 359,928 $� (72,424) $� 53,799 $� 341,293 $�2,861,637
Cash dividends (24,892)
Net income 118,165 
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 689 
Net change in the year 158,890 (371,239) (689) (213,029) (213,029)

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 518,827 $� (443,673) $� 53,101 $� 128,264 $�2,742,570
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Millions of yen
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars

2020 2019 2020
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks ¥� 484,465 ¥� 265,358 $� 4,451,575
Monetary claims purchased 9,177 9,495 84,324 
Trading securities 831 910 7,635 
Money held in trust 11,777 11,010 108,214 
Securities 853,678 806,476 7,844,142 
Loans and bills discounted 3,558,174 3,407,595 32,694,790 
Foreign exchange assets 7,481 4,809 68,740 
Other assets 43,223 20,429 397,160 
Fixed assets 68,589 60,368 630,239 
Intangible assets 3,466 3,733 31,847 
Prepaid pension cost 8,388 8,600 77,074 
Deferred tax assets 3,819 35,091
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees 25,434 24,002 233,703 
Reserve for possible loan losses (42,622) (42,775) (391,638)

Total assets ¥� 5,035,884 ¥� 4,580,015 $�46,272,939

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:
Liabilities:
Deposits ¥� 4,101,761 ¥� 3,958,284 $�37,689,616
Call money        3,482 31,994
Payables under repurchase agreements 103,320 58,742 949,370 
Borrowing under securities lending transactions 147,378 72,751 1,354,203 
Borrowed money 294,717 110,453 2,708,049 
Foreign exchange liabilities 63 97 578 
Borrowed money from trust account 1,125 10,337
Other liabilities 36,261 16,182 333,189 
Reserve for retirement benefits 1,705 1,749 15,666 
Reserve for repayments for dormant deposits 1,063 1,060 9,767 
Reserve for contingent losses 220 223 2,021 
Deferred tax liabilities 5,054  
Deferred tax liabilities related to land revaluation 6,817 6,904 62,638 
Acceptances and guarantees 25,434 24,002 233,703 

Total liabilities 4,723,353 4,255,508 43,401,203 

Equity
Common stock 18,130 18,130 166,590 
Capital surplus 11,204 11,204 102,949 
Retained earnings 247,411 238,713 2,273,371 
Valuation and translation adjustments:

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities 34,162 41,525 313,902 
Deferred gains (losses) on derivatives under hedge accounting (13,172) (33) (121,032)
Excess of land revaluation 14,793 14,964 135,927 

Total valuation and translation adjustments 35,784 56,457 328,806 
Total equity 312,530 324,506 2,871,726
Total liabilities and equity ¥� 5,035,884 ¥� 4,580,015 $�46,272,939
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Millions of yen 
Thousands of U.S. 

dollars

2020 2019 2020
Income:
Interest income:

Interest on loans and discounts ¥� 36,776 ¥� 36,319 $� 337,921 
Interest and dividends on securities 11,380 12,017 104,566
Other interest income 81 95 744

Trust fees 15 137
Fees and commissions income 10,129 10,333 93,071
Other operating income 3,351 1,693 30,791
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 3 106 27
Other income 2,673 4,866 24,561

Total income 64,411 65,433 591,849

Expenses:
Interest expenses:

Interest on deposits 424 528 3,895
Other interest expenses 2,954 1,433 27,143

Fees and commissions expenses 4,994 5,091 45,888
Other operating expenses 502 1,762 4,612
General and administrative expenses 35,350 34,291 324,818
Provision for possible loan losses 547 2,690 5,026
Losses on disposal of fixed assets 142 274 1,304
Losses on impairment of long-lived assets 549 182 5,044
Other expenses 3,416 2,111 31,388

Total expenses 48,883 48,365 449,168
Income before income taxes 15,527 17,067 142,672
Income taxes:

Current 4,457 5,670 40,953
Deferred (165) (627) (1,516)

Total income taxes 4,291 5,042 39,428
Net income ¥� 11,236 ¥� 12,024 $� 103,243
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Millions of yen
Common

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥� 18,130 ¥� 11,204 ¥�229,313
Cash dividends (2,718)
Net income 12,024
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 93
Net change in the year

Balance at April 1, 2019 ¥� 18,130 ¥� 11,204 ¥�238,713
Cash dividends (2,709)
Net income 11,236
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 170
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 ¥� 18,130 ¥� 11,204 ¥�247,411

Millions of yen
Valuation and translation adjustments

Unrealized 
gains  (losses) 

on available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Total valuation 
and translation 

adjustments
Total 

equity

Balance at April 1, 2018 ¥� 38,572 ¥� (10) ¥� 15,058 ¥� 53,620 ¥�312,269
Cash dividends (2,718)
Net income 12,024
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 93
Net change in the year 2,952 (23) (93) 2,836 2,836

Balance at April 1, 2019 ¥� 41,525 ¥� (33) ¥� 14,964 ¥� 56,457 ¥�324,506
Cash dividends (2,709)
Net income 11,236
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 170
Net change in the year (7,362) (13,139) (170) (20,673) (20,673)

Balance at March 31, 2020 ¥� 34,162 ¥� (13,172) ¥� 14,793 ¥� 35,784 ¥�312,530
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
Common

stock
Capital 
surplus

Retained 
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2019 $� 166,590 $� 102,949 $�2,193,448
Cash dividends (24,892)
Net income 103,243
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 1,562
Net change in the year

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 166,590 $� 102,949 $�2,273,371

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Valuation and translation adjustments

Unrealized 
gains (losses) on 

available-for-
sale securities

Deferred gains 
(losses) on 
derivatives 

under hedge 
accounting

Excess of land 
revaluation

Total valuation 
and translation 

adjustments
Total 

equity

Balance at April 1, 2019 $� 381,558 $� (303) $� 137,498 $� 518,763 $�2,981,769
Cash dividends (24,892)
Net income 103,243
Reversal of excess of land 

revaluation 1,562
Net change in the year (67,646) (120,729) (1,562) (189,956) (189,956)

Balance at March 31, 2020 $� 313,902 $� (121,032) $� 135,927 $� 328,806 $�2,871,726
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